
Page 1 of 3 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ORDER OF BUSINESS 

 

ORDER OF BUSINESS 

 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER 
 

II. CALL OF THE ROLL OF COUNCILLORS 
 
III. OPENING PRAYER 

 
IV. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 V. ANNOUNCEMENT OF OPEN MEETING RECORDINGS 
 

Any person may make a video or audio recording of an open session of a meeting, or may transmit the meeting through any medium, subject to 
reasonable requirements of the chair as to the number, placement and operation of equipment used so as not to interfere with the conduct of the 
meeting.  Any person intending to make such recording shall notify the Chair forthwith.  All documents and exhibits used or referenced at the 
meeting must be submitted in duplicate to the City Clerk, as they become part of the Meeting Minutes. 

 
VI. READING OF MINUTES OF PRIOR MEETING(S) 

• December 16, 2024, Regular Meeting 
• January 6, 2025, Regular Meeting 

  
VII. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
VIII. COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR 
   
IX. PETITIONS, APPLICATIONS, COMMUNICATIONS, ETC. 
 
 
 
 

COUNCILLORS AT LARGE 
Calvin D. Brooks 
Craig R. Cormier 

Brad E. Heglin 
Elizabeth J. Kazinskas 

Judy A. Mack 

 

COUNCIL PRESIDENT 
George C. Tyros 

 

City of Gardner Massachusetts 
~~~~~~~ 

CALENDAR FOR THE MEETING 
of 

TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 18, 2025 
CITY COUNCIL CHAMBER 

7:30 P.M. 
 

WARD COUNCILLORS 
1 – David R. Thibault-Muñoz 
2 – Dana M. Heath 
3 – Paul G. Tassone 
4 – Karen G. Hardern 
5 – Aleksander H. Dernalowicz, Esq. 

 



Page 2 of 3 
 

X. REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES  
 
 FINANCE COMMITTEE 
 

11481 – An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, Chapter 171, thereof 
entitled Personnel, to add the position of Human Resources Manager to the 
Compensation Schedule. (In the City Council 2/3/2025 and Ordered to First 
Printing; First Printing 2/8/2025) Page 17 

 
11482 – Discussions regarding the City’s Health Insurance Payments and Trust Fund. 

Page 19 
 
11497 – A Communication from the Mayor Regarding the Contract with Keller Partners, 

Co. for Grant Writing and Lobbying Services. Page 21 
 
11499 –An Order to Reappropriate $8,161,000.00 of Unexpected Bond Proceeds to Other 

Capital Projects. Page 46 
 
APPOINTMENTS COMMITTEE 
 
11472 – A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Robert Oliva, to the 

position of City Engineer, for term expiring January 16, 2025. Page 63 
 
11473 – A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Christine Oliva Kumar, to 

the position of City Assessor, for term expiring January 16, 2028. Page 64 
 
11483 – A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Eric McAvene, to the 

position of Police Chief, for term expiring January 16, 2028. Page 65 
 
11484 – A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Nicholas Maroni, to the 

position of Deputy Chief of Police, for term expiring January 16, 2028. Page 66 
 
11488 – A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Tina Sbrega, Trustee, to the 

position of Williams-Rockwell Educational Gift Fund, for term expiring January 
15, 2028. Page 67 

 
11489 – A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Autumn Brown, to the 

position of Animal Control Officer, for term expiring January 16, 2028. Page 68 
 
11490 – A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Alana Meserve, to the 

position of Animal Control Officer, for term expiring January 16, 2028. Page 69 
 
11491 – A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Cheryl Slack, to the 

position of Animal Control Officer, for term expiring January 16, 2028. Page 70 
 



Page 3 of 3 
 

11496 – A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Anne Hurst, to the position 
of Disability Commission Member, for term expiring January 16, 2028. Page 71 

 
 
ECONOMIC AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 
 
11498 – An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, Chapter 7, thereof 

entitled “Boards and Commissions,” as amended by Item 11289 as enacted on 
Dec 16, 2024, to add a new Section 6 to be entitled, “Community Development 
Block Grant Steering Committee.” Page 75 

 
11500 – A Request from Councillor Elizabeth Kazinskas for a One-month Update from 

the Director of Community Development and Planning. Page 78 
 
 

XI.       UNFINISHED BUSINESS AND MATTERS FOR RECONSIDERATION 
 
XII. NEW BUSINESS 
 
XIII. COUNCIL COMMENTS AND REMARKS 
 
XIV. CLOSING PRAYER 
 
XV. ADJOURNMENT 
  
Items listed on the Council Calendar are those reasonably anticipated by the Council President to be discussed at the meeting.  Not all 
items listed may in fact be discussed and other items not listed may also be brought up for discussion to the extent permitted by law. 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF DECEMBER 16, 2024 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 1 of 6 
 

 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

Regular Meeting of the City Council was held in the City Council Chamber, Room 219, City Hall, on 
Monday evening, December 2, 2024.  
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 
Council President Elizabeth Kazinskas called the meeting to order at 7:30pm.  
 

CALL OF THE ROLL 
 
City Clerk Titi Siriphan called the Roll of Members. Eleven (11) Councillors were present including 
Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Brad 
Heglin, Elizabeth Kazinskas, Judy Mack, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros.   
 

OPENING PRAYER 
 
President Kazinskas led the Council in reciting the Opening Prayer. 
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
President Kazinskas led the Council in reciting the “Pledge of Allegiance”. 
 

OPEN MEETING RECORDING & PUBLIC RECORDS ANNOUNCEMENT 
 
President Kazinskas announced to the assembly that the Open Meeting Recording and Public 
Records Announcement. Any person may make a video or audio recording of an open session of a 
meeting or may transmit the meeting through any medium subject to reasonable requirements of the 
chair as to the number placement and operation of equipment used so as not to interfere with the 
conduct of the meeting. Any person intending to make such recordings shall notify the Chair 
forthwith. All documents and exhibits used or referenced at the meeting must be submitted in 
duplicate to the chair as they become part of the meeting minutes pursuant to General Law Chapter 
38 Section 20. 
 

READING OF MINUTES OF PRIOR MEETING(S) 
 

On a motion made by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz and seconded by Councillor Paul Tassone, 
it was voted, eleven (11) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin 
Brooks, Craig Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Brad Heglin, Judy 
Mack, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros to waive the reading and accept the 
MINUTES of September 16, 2024, Regular Meeting, September 19, 2024 Regular Meeting, and 
October 7, 2024 Regular Meeting. 

 
 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF DECEMBER 16, 2024 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 2 of 6 
 

 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

 
COMMUNICATIONS FORM THE MAYOR 

ORDERS 
 

#11450 
On a motion made by Councillor Judy Mack and seconded by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz, it 
was voted on call of the roll, eleven (11) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin 
Brooks, Craig Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Brad Heglin, Judy 
Mack, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros to adopt the following order: 
 
AN   ORDER   REQUESTING   A   TRANSFER   FROM   SEWER SURPLUS/RETAINED EARNINGS 
TO SEWER DEPT PUMP STATION EXPENDITURES. 
 
ORDERED: That there be and is hereby transfer the sum of Eight Hundred Thousand Dollars and 
00/100 ($800,000) from Sewer Surplus/Retained Earnings to Sewer Dept Pump Station Expenditures. 
 
#11451 
On a motion made by Councillor Judy Mack and seconded by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz, it 
was voted on call of the roll, eleven (11) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Calvin 
Brooks, Craig Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Brad Heglin, Judy 
Mack, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros to adopt the following order: 
 
AN   ORDER   REQUESTING   A TRANSFER   FROM   WATER SURPLUS/RETAINED EARNINGS 
TO WATER DEPT REPAIRS TO MAINS EXPENDITURES. 
 
ORDERED: That there be and is hereby transfer the sum of One Hundred, Fifty Thousand Dollars 
and 00/100 ($150,000) from Water Surplus/Retained Earnings to Water Dept Repairs to Mains 
Expenditures. 
 
 

COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR 
COMMUNICATIONS 

 
#11455 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz, 
it was voted to place on file and send a letter to Attorney John Flick to thank him for his many years 
of service to the City of Gardner as City Solicitor, Notice of Appointment of Vincent Pusateri, to the 
position of City Solicitor, for term expiring January 7, 2026. 
 
11 yeas, motion passes. 
 
 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF DECEMBER 16, 2024 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 3 of 6 
 

 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

#11456 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Dana Heath, it was voted 
to place on file, Notice of Appointment of Rachel J. Roberts, to the position of Executive 
Secretary, for term expiring January 1, 2026. 
 

PETITIONS, APPLICATIONS, COMMUNICATIONS, ETC. 
 

#11452 
Councillor Craig Cormier informed the Council that they recently met on this item. The business is 
longstanding and in good standing with the city. 
 
On a motion made by Councillor Craig Cormier and seconded by Councillor Karen Hardern, it was 
voted to grant the license for, An Application for Motor Vehicle Dealers Licenses, Class II, Gardner 
Five Star Auto Sales, 407 Chestnut Street. 
 
11 yeas, motion passes. 
 
#11453 
On a motion made by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz and seconded by Councillor Paul Tasone, it 
was voted to place on file, Fire Department update with Fire Chief Greg Lagoy. 
 
#11454 
Councillor George Tyros informed the Council of his findings and reports of the Maki Park Project. He 
found that the design of the park changed from initial concept to bid award. The conceptual layout 
created by Tighe & Bond and presented to the City Council in June of 2022 showed three terraces with 
individual ramp accesses to each level. The Mayor's letter supporting the project cited, “the teres would 
correct grading issues bring the slopes to a level that is compliant with ADA standards and allow us to 
utilize the area in a productive manner.” In May of 2023 the bid set drawings utilized during the public 
bidding process for the project clearly showed ramp entrances to the bottom and top terraces with 
stairs connecting each to the middle. The second key finding was that the Department of Community 
Development and Planning did not apply for or obtain a building permit for Mackie Park prior to its 
completion. Councillor Tyros recommends considering establishing a new subcommittee to cover 
Economic Development. The second recommendation is progress reports, and third recommendation 
is subcommittee oversight. Finally, a new ordinance proposal he submitted earlier to the City Clerk, 
that the Community Development Block Grant Steering Committee shall meet monthly. 
 
On a motion made by Councilor George Tyros and seconded by Aleksander Dernalowicz, it was voted 
to refer to the Finance Committee Report on the Investigation of the Maki Park Project. 
 
11 yeas, motion passes. 
 
 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF DECEMBER 16, 2024 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 4 of 6 
 

 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES 
SAFETY COMMITTEE 

 
#11444 
On a motion made by Councillor Craig Cormier and seconded by Councillor Karen Hardern, it was 
voted to grant, Applications for Motor Vehicle Dealers Licenses, Class I.  
 (a) Salvadore Chevrolet, 442 West Broadway  

(b) Salvadore Chrysler-Dodge-Jeep-Ram, 442 West Broadway 
 
11 yeas, motion passes. 
 
#11445 
On a motion made by Councillor Craig Cormier and seconded by Councillor Karen Hardern, it was 
voted to grant, Applications for Motor Vehicle Dealers Licenses, Class II. 
 (a) AC Auto Clinic, 411 Parker Street 

(b) Brian’s Auto Sales, 549 W Broadway 
(c) Blake Motors, 412 Main Street 
(d) Gardner Auto Mart, Inc., 182 West Street 
(e) Gardner Motors, LLC, 119 Pearson Blvd 
(f) JPJ Automotive, LLC, 78 East Broadway 
(g) Mike’s Auto, 251 E Broadway 
(h) Osagi Enterprise, LLC., 43 Tobey Street 
(i) Ric’s Radiator Repair Used Car Sales, 800 W Broadway 
(j) Riverside Auto, 65 Riverside Road 
(k) Salvadore Chevrolet, 421 W Broadway 
(l) Salvadore Chevrolet, 249 Timpany Blvd. 
(m) J. Wood Inc., 361 West Street 

 
11 yeas, motion passes. 
 
#11446 
On a motion made by Councillor Craig Cormier and seconded by Councillor Karen Hardern, it was 
voted to refer to grant, Applications for Motor Vehicle Dealers Licenses, Class III. 

(a) Osagi Enterprise, LLC., Used Auto Parts Sales, 43 Tobey Street. 
(b) Riverside Auto, 65 Riverside Road 

 
11 yeas, motion passes. 
 
 
 
 
 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF DECEMBER 16, 2024 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 5 of 6 
 

 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
APPOINTMENTS COMMITTEE 

 
#11447 
On a motion made by Councillor George Tyros and seconded by Councillor Dana Heath, it was voted 
to confirm, A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Robert Mojica, to the position of 
Police Officer, permanent. 
 
11 yeas, motion passes. 
 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 
 
#11289 
Councillor Calvin Brooks proposed amendments to certain items to the Administrative Legislation 
Ordinance, letter attached. 
 
On a motion made by Councilor Calvin Brooks and seconded by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz, 
it was voted on call of the roll, two (2) yeas, Councillors Calvin Brooks and Paul Tassone; nine (9) 
nays, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Craig Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 
Hardern, Dana Heath, Brad Heglin, Judy Mack, David Thibault-Muñoz and George Tyros; to amend 
item #11289 - Administrative Legislation in order to set the size of the various boards and 
commissions to a fixed number as follows: (attached) 
 
2 yeas, 9 nays, motion defeated. 
 
On a motion made by Councilor Calvin Brooks and seconded by Councillor Paul Tassone, it was 
voted on call of the roll, five (5) yeas, Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Dana Heath, Paul 
Tassone and David Thibault-Muñoz; six (6) nays, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors 
Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Brad Heglin, Judy Mack, and George Tyros; to amend item 
#11289 – Administrative Legislation, Section 30-Chapter 3, Personnel, Appointments, and 
Employment, section 4 Temporary Appointments by adding the following sentence to the end of the 
section: "No temporary appointee shall succeed themself as a temporary appointee." 
 
5 yeas, 6 nays, motion defeated. 
 
On a motion made by Councilor Calvin Brooks and seconded by Councillor Paul Tassone, it was 
voted on call of the roll, four (4) yeas, Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Paul Tassone and 
David Thibault-Muñoz; seven (7) nays, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors Aleksander 
Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Brad Heglin, Judy Mack, and George Tyros; to amend 
Item #11289-Administrative Legislation, Section 30-Chapter 3, Personnel, Appointments, and 
Employment, section 4 Temporary Appointments by adding the following sentence to the end of the 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF DECEMBER 16, 2024 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 6 of 6 
 

 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

section: "The mayor shall notify City Council of any temporary appointments made under this 
section." 
 
4 yeas, 7 nays, motion defeated. 
 
On a motion made by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz and seconded by Councillor George Tyros, 
it was voted to send to second and final printing, An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of 
Gardner, Part 1, thereof entitled, “Administrative Legislation”. 
 
11 yeas, motion passes. 
 

CLOSING PRAYER 
 

President Kazinskas led the Council in the Closing Prayer. 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

On a motion made by Councillor Paul Tassone and seconded by Councillor Craig Cormier, the meeting 
adjourned at 8:27 pm. 
 
11 yeas, the motion passes. 
 
Accepted by the City Council:  
 
 











 
REGULAR MEETING OF JANUARY 6, 2025 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 1 of 3 
 

 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

Regular Meeting of the City Council was held in the City Council Chamber, Room 219, City 
Hall, on Monday evening, January 6, 2025.  
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 

City Clerk Titi Siriphan called the meeting to order at 7:30 o’clock p.m.  
 

CALL OF THE ROLL 
 

City Clerk Titi Siriphan called the Roll of Members. Eleven (11) Councillors were present 
including Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, 
Dana Heath, Brad Heglin, Elizabeth Kazinskas, Judy Mack, Paul Tassone, David Thibault-
Muñoz and George Tyros.   
 
 

ELECTION OF THE COUNCIL PRESIDENT 
 

The City Clerk announced that nominations were in order for election of Council President 
for the year 2025, in accordance with Section 5 of the Charter of the City of Gardner. 
 
Councillor George Tyros announced that he would recuse himself on advice from the State 
Ethics Commission “as candidates [for Council President] are not allowed to vote for 
themselves.” He removed himself from the meeting participation. 
 

The Clerk announced that nominations were in order for election of Council President for the 
year 2025. 
 
Councillor Elizabeth Kazinskas nominated Councillor George Tyros. 
 
There being no further nominations, the City Clerk entertained a motion to close 
nominations. 
 

On a motion by Councillor Calvin Brooks and seconded by Councillor Karen Hardern, it was 
voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, Councillors Calvin Brooks, Craig Cormier, Aleksander 
Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Brad Heglin, Elizabeth Kazinskas, Judy Mack, Paul 
Tassone, and David Thibault-Muñoz, to close nominations. 
 

On call of the roll: 
 

Councillor Calvin D. Brooks voting for GEORGE C. TYROS 
Councillor Craig R. Cormier voting for GEORGE C. TYROS 
Councillor Aleksander H. Dernalowicz voting for GEORGE C. TYROS 
Councillor Karen G. Hardern voting for GEORGE C. TYROS 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF JANUARY 6, 2025 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 2 of 3 
 

 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

Councillor Dana M. Heath GEORGE C. TYROS 
Councillor Brad E. Heglin voting for GEORGE C. TYROS 
Councillor Elizabeth J. Kazinskas GEORGE C. TYROS 
Councillor Judy A. Mack voting for GEORGE C. TYROS  
Councillor Paul G. Tassone voting for GEORGE C. TYROS 
Councillor David Thibault-Muñoz voting GEORGE C. TYROS 
Councillor George C. Tyros ABSTAINED 

 

Having received nine (10) votes, Councillor George C. Tyros was declared elected Council 
President. Councillors applauded and extended personal congratulations.  
 

President Tyros assumed the Chair and expressed appreciation to his colleagues for electing 
him to the Council Presidency.  
 
 

OPENING PRAYER 
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

President Tyros led the Council in reciting the “Pledge of Allegiance”. 
 

OPEN MEETING RECORDING & PUBLIC RECORDS ANNOUNCEMENT 
 

President Tyros announced to the assembly that the Open Meeting Recording and Public 
Records Announcement. Any person may make a video or audio recording of an open session 
of a meeting or may transmit the meeting through any medium subject to reasonable 
requirements of the chair as to the number placement and operation of equipment used so as 
not to interfere with the conduct of the meeting. Any person intending to make such 
recordings shall notify the Chair forthwith. All documents and exhibits used or referenced at 
the meeting must be submitted in duplicate to the chair as they become part of the meeting 
minutes pursuant to General Law Chapter 38 Section 20. 
 

READING & ACCEPTANCE OF MINUTES 
 

There were no meeting minutes to approve. 
 

PETITIONS, APPLICATIONS, COMMUNICATIONS, ETC. 
 
There were no petitions, applications, communications, etc. 
 
 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF JANUARY 6, 2025 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 3 of 3 
 

 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES 
 
There were no reports on the Standing Committees. 
 

UNFINISTHED BUSINESS AND MATTERS FOR RECONSIDERATION 
 

There were no Unfinished Business and Matters for Reconsideration. 
 

COUNCIL COMMENTS AND REMARKS 
 
Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz would like to congratulate President Tyros and thank 
Councillor Elizabeth Kazinskas for time served as Council President. 
 

CLOSING PRAYER 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

On a motion by Councillor Paul Tassone and seconded by Councillor Calvin Brooks, it was 
voted to adjourn at 7:41 p.m. 
 
11 yeas, motion passes 
 
 

Accepted by the City Council:   



     City of Gardner - Executive Department 

 Mayor Michael J. Nicholson 

January 27, 2025 

Hon. George C. Tyros, Council President 

And City Councilors 

Gardner City Hall, Rm 121 

95 Pleasant Street  

Gardner, MA 01440 

RE: An Ordinance To Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, Chapter 171, thereof entitled 

Personnel to amend the Non-Union Compensation Schedule to add the HR Manager Position to 

the list of approved titles and pay scales.  

Dear Mr. President and Councilors,  

At the January 21, 2025, meeting of the City Council, it was voted to authorize the 

Administration to create a new position titled Human Resources Manager for the City’s Human 

Resources Department.  

The attached ordinance amendment would create this position fully, in conjunction with this vote 

to fully allow this position to be created.  

Respectfully Submitted, 

Michael J. Nicholson 

Mayor, City of Gardner 

11481



AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND SECTION 68 OF THE CHAPTER 171 OF THE CODE OF THE 
CITY OF GARDNER, ENTITLED PERSONNEL COMPENSATION SCHEDULE 

 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GARDNER AS FOLLOWS:  
 
SECTION 1: Section 68 of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner entitled Personnel 
Compensation Schedule, be amended by adding the following to said section of the code:  
 
B. Non-Union Direct and Supervisory Staff Positions  
 
Position     Grade    Annual 
 Weekly 
 
HR Manager         $63,316 

 
 
SECTION 2: This ordinance shall take effect upon passage and publication as required by law.  
 
 

11481



From: Alek Dernalowicz
To: Titi Siriphan
Cc: George Tyros
Subject: Fw: Health Trust Balance Update
Date: Thursday, February 13, 2025 12:10:07 PM

Ti,

Can you make sure this is part of packet.

Best,
Dern

--
Aleksander H. Dernalowicz, Esq.
Ward 5 City Councillor
(978) 632-0243

From: John Richard <jrichard@gardner-ma.gov>
Sent: Thursday, February 13, 2025 8:04 AM
To: Alek Dernalowicz <adernalowicz@gardner-ma.gov>; Judy Mack <jmack@gardner-ma.gov>; Brad
E. Heglin <bheglin@gardner-ma.gov>
Cc: Mayor <Mayor@gardner-ma.gov>; George Tyros <gtyros@gardner-ma.gov>
Subject: RE: Health Trust Balance Update

Morning Councilors

I did some research last night.  Our accounting system MUNIS does have a scheduling feature
in which I can put monthly tasks reminders.  This will be a secondary catch to make sure the
withholdings GL entry is posted mthly and will use this feature for all my monthly GL entry.  I
will continue to research to see if there is a more automated feature that would possibly post
entry without having to do them manually.  I am all in for streamlining and improving
procedures. 

Thank you for your input at yesterday’s meeting.  Very helpful. 

John Richard
City Auditor

95 Pleasant Street, Room 114
Gardner, MA 01440-2630
978-632-1900 ext 8020

From: John Richard 

11482

mailto:adernalowicz@gardner-ma.gov
mailto:tsiriphan@gardner-ma.gov
mailto:gtyros@gardner-ma.gov


Sent: Tuesday, February 11, 2025 11:25 AM
To: Alek Dernalowicz <adernalowicz@gardner-ma.gov>; Judy Mack <jmack@gardner-ma.gov>; Brad
E. Heglin <bheglin@gardner-ma.gov>
Cc: Mayor <Mayor@gardner-ma.gov>
Subject: Health Trust Balance Update

Hello

Just wanted to send a quick update on the Health Trust Balance.

The balance at 12/31/24 compared to 01/31/2025. 

As of 12/31/2024 Health Trust Balance is $355,228.41

As of 01/31/2025 Health Trust Balance is $1,417,686.16.

-Main reason for the large increase was we had Stoploss reimbursements totaling
$484,023.63 that hit in Jan.  This is basically large claims that are cover by our Stoploss policy
which we get reimbursed.  There is a lag time before the reimbursement is paid out.  We
currently have another $440,531.24 of Stoploss reimbursements that haven’t been paid out
yet.  I am hoping that comes in before 6/30/25 which will only help our Health Trust balance.

-Claims that were above our mthly level funding amount of $1,071,000 came in at $11,593 for
January vs previous 6 mths averaged was $212,661.44 per mth.  I just got Feb claims, and it
came it about $80,000 over mthly level funding which is low again compared to the $212K
average.

-The other part is I post a mthly withholding journal entry.   I usually get a withholding report
from the Treasurer dept at the end of every month.  When I saw January’s report, I realized I
never got Nov or Dec.  I requested those reports right away and posted them.   I now have an
outlook reminder at the beginning of every month to make sure this GL entry is done before
calculating the Health Trust balance.  This accounts for about $300,000 in the Health Trust
Balance.

A comfortable Health Trust Balance is between $1,800,000 to $2,000,000 which would cover
about more than twice our IBNR.   Again, hoping the $440K in stoploss reimbursements come
in between now and 6/30/25.

Hope this help and if you have any questions let me know.  See you tomorrow at the Fincom
meeting.

Thank you.

11482



John Richard
City Auditor

95 Pleasant Street, Room 114
Gardner, MA 01440-2630
978-632-1900 ext 8020

11482



11482



11482



     City of Gardner - Executive Department 

 Mayor Michael J. Nicholson 

February 5, 2025 

Hon. Aleksander Dernalowicz, Chair 

And Finance Committee Members 

Gardner City Hall, Rm 121 

95 Pleasant Street  

Gardner, MA 01440 

RE: A Communication from the Mayor Regarding the Contract with Keller Partners, Co. for 

Grant Writing and Lobbying Services 

Dear Mr. Chairman and Councilors,  

At the January 15th, 2025 meeting of the Finance Committee, Chair Dernalowicz requested that 

the Finance Committee be sent a copy of the final executed copy of the Contract between the 

City and Keller Partners, Co.  

A copy of the final executed contract is attached. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Michael J. Nicholson 

Mayor, City of Gardner 

11497



CITY OF GARDNER
CONTRACT #2025-914 

GRANT WRITING & GOVERNMENT OUTREACH SERVICES 
KELLER PARTNERS & COMPANY 

1201 15th St. NW, Suite 400, Washington, DC 20016 

ARTICLE 1, DEFINITION: as used herein shall mean these Articles and the Bid/Quote Documents which 
include, but are not limited to, the instructions, the bid/quote/proposal, the specifications, the requirements, the 
contract terms and conditions, applicable addenda and all documents and forms submitted with the bid or 
proposal. 

ARTICLE 2, DURATION:  This Contract shall be in effect from January 1, 2025 to December 31, 2027, with the option to 
renew for one subsequent term  January 1, 2027 to December 31, 2029. The contract term is at the sole 
discretion of the City of Gardner but shall not exceed three years without the expressed written consent of the City 
of Gardner. 

ARTICLE 3, TERMS: The Contractor agrees to provide services, material and/or equipment all in accordance with the 
Bid/Quote Documents for the contract stated above, which is incorporated herein and made part of this Contract. 
This Contract shall be binding upon the Contractor, its assigns, transferees, and/or successors in interest (and 
where not a corporation, the heirs and estate of the Contractor). 

ARTICLE 4, PAYMENT: The City of Gardner agrees to pay the Contractor the sum set forth in the  quote or 
proposal, at a rate of Seven Thousand Five Hundred and Zero Cents ($7,500.00) per month for years 1 through 3, 
which is attached and made part of this contract.  The contractor shall provide invoices with work completed 
detailed on the invoice.   

ARTICLE 5, CONFLICT:  In the event there is a conflict between this Contract and the Bid/Quote Documents, the 
Bid/Quote Documents shall supersede the Contract. 

ARTICLE 6, GOVERNING ORDINANCES AND LAWS:  This Contract is made subject to all the laws of the Commonwealth of 
Massachusetts and ordinances of the City of Gardner.  If any clause herein does not conform to such laws and 
ordinances, that clause and only that clause shall be void.  The remainder of this contract shall be unaffected and 
the law or statute that is applicable shall be substituted.   

ARTICLE 7, SUSPENSION AND DEBARMENT: The Contractor certifies that neither their entity nor its principals are 
presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded for the award 
of contracts by any Federal or State Government Agency or Department. 

This Contract, executed in three copies, is to take effect as a sealed instrument, sets forth the entire contract 
between the parties, is binding upon and endures to the benefit of the parties hereto, and may be made canceled, 
modified, or amended only by a written instrument executed by both the parties named herein. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties have hereto and set their hands on the day and year written. 

FOR CORPORATION/OWNER 

_______________________________________ 
(Authorized Signature) 

CITY OF GARDNER, by its Mayor 

________________________________________ 
Michael J. Nicholson 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

_______________________________________ 
Law Department 

FOR CONTRACTING DEPARTMENT: 

________________________________________ 
(Department Head) 

Docusign Envelope ID: 77262D30-665C-41D7-AF20-0BD6CF46CFC1

11497



CITY OF GARDNER
CONTRACT #2025-914 

GRANT WRITING & GOVERNMENT OUTREACH SERVICES 
KELLER PARTNERS & COMPANY 

1201 15th St. NW, Suite 400, Washington, DC 20016 
 
 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
CITY AUDITOR who certifies, pursuant to Massachusetts General 
Law C.44, §31C, that the proposed expenditure is not in excess of the 
appropriation or the unexpended balance thereof and that the 
Mayor is authorized to sign this contract. 

 
 
 
________________________________________ 
PROCUREMENT OFFICER who certifies that the services or 
supplies purchased or leased pursuant to this contract were, to the 
best of his belief and knowledge, procured pursuant to the 
procurement laws of the Commonwealth to the extent such laws 
apply. 

 

Docusign Envelope ID: 77262D30-665C-41D7-AF20-0BD6CF46CFC1

Acct #:11199-52190

11497



Docusign Envelope ID: 77262D30-665C-41D7-AF20-0BD6CF46CFC1

11497



Docusign Envelope ID: 77262D30-665C-41D7-AF20-0BD6CF46CFC1

11497



Docusign Envelope ID: 77262D30-665C-41D7-AF20-0BD6CF46CFC1

11497



Docusign Envelope ID: 77262D30-665C-41D7-AF20-0BD6CF46CFC1

11497



Docusign Envelope ID: 77262D30-665C-41D7-AF20-0BD6CF46CFC1

11497



Docusign Envelope ID: 77262D30-665C-41D7-AF20-0BD6CF46CFC1

11497



Docusign Envelope ID: 77262D30-665C-41D7-AF20-0BD6CF46CFC1

11497



Docusign Envelope ID: 77262D30-665C-41D7-AF20-0BD6CF46CFC1

11497



Docusign Envelope ID: 77262D30-665C-41D7-AF20-0BD6CF46CFC1

11497



Docusign Envelope ID: 77262D30-665C-41D7-AF20-0BD6CF46CFC1

11497



Docusign Envelope ID: 77262D30-665C-41D7-AF20-0BD6CF46CFC1

11497



Docusign Envelope ID: 77262D30-665C-41D7-AF20-0BD6CF46CFC1

11497



Docusign Envelope ID: 77262D30-665C-41D7-AF20-0BD6CF46CFC1

11497



Docusign Envelope ID: 77262D30-665C-41D7-AF20-0BD6CF46CFC1

11497



Docusign Envelope ID: 77262D30-665C-41D7-AF20-0BD6CF46CFC1

11497



Docusign Envelope ID: 77262D30-665C-41D7-AF20-0BD6CF46CFC1

11497



Docusign Envelope ID: 77262D30-665C-41D7-AF20-0BD6CF46CFC1

11497



Docusign Envelope ID: 77262D30-665C-41D7-AF20-0BD6CF46CFC1

11497



Docusign Envelope ID: 77262D30-665C-41D7-AF20-0BD6CF46CFC1

11497



Docusign Envelope ID: 77262D30-665C-41D7-AF20-0BD6CF46CFC1

11497



Docusign Envelope ID: 77262D30-665C-41D7-AF20-0BD6CF46CFC1

11497



ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?

INSR ADDL SUBR
LTR INSD WVD

PRODUCER CONTACT
NAME:

FAXPHONE
(A/C, No):(A/C, No, Ext):

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

INSURER A :

INSURED INSURER B :

INSURER C :

INSURER D :

INSURER E :

INSURER F :

POLICY NUMBER
POLICY EFF POLICY EXP

TYPE OF INSURANCE LIMITS(MM/DD/YYYY) (MM/DD/YYYY)

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

EACH OCCURRENCE $
DAMAGE TO RENTEDCLAIMS-MADE OCCUR $PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

MED EXP (Any one person) $

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $
PRO-POLICY LOC PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGGJECT

OTHER: $
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

$(Ea accident)

ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) $
OWNED SCHEDULED

BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $AUTOS ONLY AUTOS

HIRED NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE
$AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY (Per accident)

$

OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE

CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $

DED RETENTION $

PER OTH-
STATUTE ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $
If yes, describe under

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMITDESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

Y / N

N / A
(Mandatory in NH)

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE    EXPIRATION    DATE    THEREOF,    NOTICE   WILL   BE   DELIVERED   IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

THIS  IS  TO  CERTIFY  THAT  THE  POLICIES  OF  INSURANCE  LISTED  BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.    NOTWITHSTANDING  ANY  REQUIREMENT,  TERM  OR  CONDITION  OF  ANY  CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE  MAY  BE  ISSUED  OR  MAY  PERTAIN,  THE  INSURANCE  AFFORDED  BY  THE  POLICIES  DESCRIBED  HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

THIS  CERTIFICATE  IS  ISSUED  AS  A  MATTER  OF  INFORMATION  ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE  DOES  NOT  AFFIRMATIVELY  OR  NEGATIVELY  AMEND,  EXTEND  OR  ALTER  THE  COVERAGE  AFFORDED  BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.    THIS  CERTIFICATE  OF  INSURANCE  DOES  NOT  CONSTITUTE  A  CONTRACT  BETWEEN  THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT:    If  the  certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If  SUBROGATION  IS  WAIVED,  subject  to  the  terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.ACORD 25 (2016/03)

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

$

$

$

$

$

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

1/13/2025

(240) 864-9148 (240) 864-8122

20443

Keller Partners & Company LLC
1201 15th St NW
Suite 400
Washington, DC 20005

35289
37540

A 1,000,000

6045336130 7/15/2024 7/15/2025 1,000,000

10,000

1,000,000

2,000,000

2,000,000

1,000,000A

6045336130 7/15/2024 7/15/2025

1,000,000A
6045336175 7/15/2024 7/15/2025 1,000,000

10,000
B

WC 6 50277061 7/15/2024 7/15/2025 1,000,000

1,000,000

1,000,000

C Professional Liab. V15887241101 5/9/2024 Limit 1,000,000

Evidence of Insurance

Director of Purchasing & Civil Enforcement
Gardner City Hall
95 Pleasant Street
Gardner, MA 01440

KELLPAR-01 XRONSIMONONSKI

AP Benefit Advisors, LLC dba Early, Cassidy, & Schilling
540 Gaither Road, Suite 420
Rockville, MD 20850

William Banks

william.banks@assuredpartners.com

Continental Casualty Company
Continental Insurance Company
Beazley Insurance Company, Inc

X

5/9/2025

X
X

X

X X

X

X

X

Docusign Envelope ID: 77262D30-665C-41D7-AF20-0BD6CF46CFC1

11497



     City of Gardner - Executive Department 

 Mayor Michael J. Nicholson 

February 10, 2025 

Hon. George C. Tyros, Council President 

And City Councilors 

Gardner City Hall, Rm 121 

95 Pleasant Street  

Gardner, MA 01440 

RE: An Order To Reappropriate Unexpended Bond Proceeds To Other Capital Projects 

Dear Mr. President and Councilors,  

During my State of the City Address of January 15, 2025, I stated that the new Gardner 

Elementary School Project came in over $8 million under budget, and that the Administration 

would be submitting a re-appropriation order to the City Council to allocate these funds to other 

various capital improvement projects. 

Attached, please find the Administrations re-appropriation request. 

Per the requirements of the General Laws and the regulations put in place by the City’s Bond 

Legal Counsel, the projects that the funding is re-allocated to must have a life span of at least 

thirty (30) years and CANNOT be used for paving or equipment. In order to verify that a 

proposed project had a life span of at least thirty (30) years, the projects had to be reviewed and 

confirmed by an engineer’s stamped letter.  

The attached proposal contains projects that were reviewed by the City’s on-call engineering 

firms, Tighe and Bond and Fuss and O’Neil, and were approved by Bond Counsel. 

Please note- the Massachusetts School Building Authority (MSBA) officially named the 

construction of the new Gardner Elementary School project as the “Waterford Street School 

Replacement Project.” As such, the attached re-appropriation order, and the original loan order 

refer to the loan as such. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Michael J. Nicholson 

Mayor, City of Gardner 

11499



ORDER NO. ____ 

IN CITY COUNCIL __________, 2025 

AN ORDER TO REAPPROPRIATE UNEXPENDED BOND PROCEEDS TO OTHER 
CAPITAL PROJECTS 

BE IT ORDERED, BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GARDNER AS FOLLOWS: 

That eight million one hundred sixty-one thousand dollars and zero cents ($8,161,000.00) is 
appropriated to pay costs of the following capital projects, each of which have a useful life of at 
least 30 years: 

Project Description Amount 
Gardner High School Auditorium Upgrades $1,500,000.00 
Gardner High School Bathroom Upgrades $50,000.00 
Gardner High School Locker Room Replacement $2,000,000.00 
Gardner High School Stair Tread Replacement $80,000.00 
Gardner Middle School Storefront Replacement $50,000.00 
Gardner Middle School Roof Replacement Project $1,200,000.00 
Community Center Bathroom Renovation $200,000.00 
Community Center Electrical Upgrades $525,000.00 
Community Center Door Replacements $150,000.00 
Community Center Roof Repairs $6,000.00 
Community Center Flooring $200,000.00 
Greenwood Pool Administration and Storage Building Siding $100,000.00 
Greenwood Pool Administration and Storage Buildings Roof Replace $125,000.00 
City Hall Electrical Service Upgrade $525,000.00 
City Hall Façade Improvements $50,000.00 
City Hall Bathroom Renovations $85,000.00 
City Hall Entryway Repairs $115,000.00 
Perry Auditorium Window and Door Replacements $400,000.00 
Rear Main Street Construction $800,000.00 

TOTAL: $8,161,000.00 

and that to meet this appropriation, eight million one hundred sixty-one thousand dollars and 
zero cents ($8,161,000.00) shall be transferred from a portion of the amount borrowed on June 
23, 2022, to pay costs of the Waterford Street Elementary School replacement project, which 
project is complete and no liability remains, such funds being no longer needed to complete that 
project, in accordance with G.L. c, 44, §20. 

11499



 

 

53 Southampton Road     •     Westfield, MA 01085-5308     •     Tel 413.562.1600 

www.tighebond.com 

G-0384 

January 17, 2025 

Mayor Nicholson 
City of Gardner 
95 Pleasant Street 
Gardner, MA 01440 

Re: Reappropriation of Unexpended Bond Proceeds 

Dear Mayor Nicholson: 

It is our understanding that the City of Gardner (City) has unexpended funds from a previous 

project and intends to reallocate these funds to other capital improvements projects. The City 

has provided Tighe & Bond with the following list of potential projects for funding: 

• Gardner High School  

o Auditorium Upgrades 

o Intercom and Clocks 

o Parking Lot Paving  

o Toilet Partitions 

o Locker Room Improvements 

o Stair Tread Replacement 

• Gardner Middle School  

o Storefront 

o Roadway Paving 

o Roof Replacement 

o Rooftop Condenser  

o Heat Pump Replacement 

• Gardner Schools Facilities Truck  

• Waterford Community Center 

o Gut and Rehab of Bathrooms 

o Fire Alarms Systems  

o Air Conditioner Installation 

o Exterior Doors Replacement 

o Floor Replacements  

o Roof Replacement 

• Waterford Annex Building 

o Roof replacement 

o Building Envelope improvements 

o Door and flooring replacement 

• Greenwood Pool  

o Fence Replacement 

o New Siding on Admin and Storage Building  

o New Roof on Admin and Storage Building  

• City Hall  

o Bathroom Plumbing Repairs 

o Upgrade City Hall Electric Service  

o Façade Repointing 

o Entryway Repairs  

o Painting 

o Heating System Upgrade  

o Roof Snow Guards  

11499



 

- 2 - 

• DPW Building 

o Sign Shop  

o New Roof  

o Window Replacement  

o New Doors  

• Perry Auditorium  

o Window and Door Replacement  

o Air Conditioner Installation  

o Accessible Stage Improvements 

• New DPW Salt Shed 

• Culvert Replacements 

• New Traffic Signals  

• Removal of Underground Storage Tanks  

• Wilder Field Drainage Improvements 

We understand that only projects with an estimated minimum useful life of 30 years are 

eligible for this funding. After reviewing the scopes of work and available data for the materials 

that would be specified, it is our opinion that the following projects can be expected to have 

a minimum useful life of 30 years. Our understanding of the project scopes and assumptions 

regarding the types of materials and equipment to be used are described below. 

Gardner High School:  

• Auditorium Upgrades: Replacement of existing acoustical ceiling, door replacement, 

provide accessible entrance to auditorium control booth 

• Toilet Partitions: Replacement of existing toilet partitions with stainless steel, HDPE 

solid plastic, or solid phenolic core partitions 

• Locker Room Replacement: Replacement of existing lockers, floor tile, benches, and 

partitions 

• Stair Tread Replacement: Replacement of existing stair treads and nosings 

Gardner Middle School 

• Storefront Replacement: Replacement of existing storefront system with aluminum 

framed storefront system 

• Roof Replacement: Replacement of existing roofing system with new membrane 

roofing system with 30-year warranty 

Waterford Community Center: 

• Gut and Rehab Bathroom: Replacement of plumbing, partitions, and fixtures in 

bathrooms. 

• Floor Replacements: Existing flooring to be replaced with commercial grade flooring 

materials. 

• Replacement of Exterior Doors: Replacement of existing storefront system with 

aluminum framed storefront system and new metal doors. 

• New Roof: Replacement of existing roofing system with 30-year warranty materials. 

Waterford Annex Building: 

• Roof and Façade Replacement: Replacement of the existing roof system with 30-

year warranty materials and building envelope repairs. 

11499



 

- 3 - 

• Door and Flooring Replacement: Replacement of existing doors with new metal 

doors and select replacement of flooring with commercial grade flooring materials. 

Greenwood Pool:  

• Fence Replacement: Replacement of existing fence with Chain link Fencing.  

• New Siding on Admin and Storage Building: Replacement of existing siding 

system with 30-year warranty materials. 

• New Roof on Admin and Storage Building: Replacement of existing roofing system 

with 30-year warranty materials. 

City Hall: 

• Upgrade Electric Service: Replacement of transformers, panel, circuit breakers, 

wiring and receptacles.  

• Façade Repointing: New mortar to secure existing brick façade. 

• Entryway Repairs: Concrete, mortar, and stone repairs.  

• Roof Snow Guards: Installation of stainless-steel roof snow guards. 

DPW Building: 

• New Roof: Replacement of existing roofing system with 30-year warranty materials 

• New Sign Shop: The addition of a new bay to the existing DPW building to hold the 

Street sign making process will provide over a 30-year useful life    

• Replacement of Window: Replacement of existing storefront system with aluminum 

framed storefront system. 

• Replacement of Exterior Doors: Replacement of existing garage door with insulated 

roll up doors. 

Perry Auditorium:  

• Replacement of Window and Doors: Replacement of existing doors and windows 

with aluminum framed windows and metal doors. 

Other Locations within Town: 

• Culvert Replacement: Replacement of culverts with correctly sized HDPE pipe 

materials. 

• Removal of Under Ground Storage Tanks: The removal of tanks is considered to 

have greater than 30 years of useful life as it removes the potential for future spills or 

collapses. 

• Traffic Lights: New poles, masts, and lights 

• Wilder Field Drainage Improvement: New Concrete structures, PVC pipes, RCP 

Pipes and other drainage system components will provide over a 30-year useful life.    

 

 

 

 

11499



 

- 4 - 

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me at 413.572.3281 or via email 
at jpviamari@tighebond.com. 

Very truly yours, 
TIGHE & BOND, INC. 
 
 
 

 

Joseph P. Viamari, Jr., PE, LEED AP    
Senior Vice President      
T   413.572.3281       
C   413.636.2236      
E   jpviamari@tighebond.com    

 

J:\G\G0384 GARDNER\PROP\ENGINEERS LETTER FOR BOND.DOCX 

11499

JPV
Model

JPV
Image

JPV
Typewritten Text
1/17/25



11499



11499



11499



11499



11499



11499



11499



11499



11499



11499



11499



11472



11473



11483



11484



11488



11489



11490



11491



11496



     City of Gardner - Executive Department 

 Mayor Michael J. Nicholson 

February 7, 2025 

Hon. George C. Tyros, Council President 

And City Councilors 

Gardner City Hall, Rm 121 

95 Pleasant Street  

Gardner, MA 01440 

RE: An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, Chapter 7, thereof entitled 

“Boards and Commissions,” as amended by Item 11289 as enacted on Dec 16, 2024, to add a 

new Section 6 to be entitled, “Community Development Block Grant Steering Committee.”   

Dear Mr. President and Councilors,  

Following the Maki Park Report, I issued a statement promising to codify the structure and make 

up of the Community Development Block Grant (“CDBG”) Steering Committee. This 

commitment was echoed in my State of the City Address that I delivered on January 14th, 2025, 

and again at the statements I made to the City Council at the regular meeting of January 21, 

2025.  

Attached to this correspondence is a proposed ordinance amendment that codifies the workings 

and structure of the CDBG Steering Committee to increase accountability and transparency, as a 

means to address the problems that arose in the recent past.  

Respectfully submitted, 

Michael J. Nicholson  

Mayor, City of Gardner 

11498



 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF THE CITY OF GARDNER, CHAPTER 7, 

THEREOF ENTITED, “BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS,” AS AMENDED BY ITEM 

11289 AS ADOPTED ON DECEMBER 16, 2024, TO ADD A NEW SECTION 6 TO BE 

ENTITLED “COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT STEERING 

COMMITTEE.” 

 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GARDNER AS FOLLOWS:  

 

SECTION 1: Chapter 7 of the Code of the City of Gardner, as amended though Item 11289 

adopted by the City Council on December 16, 2024 and enacted with the Mayor’s signature on 

December 17, 2024, be amended by adding a new Section 6 to be entitled “Community 

Development Block Grant Steering Committee,” to read as follows:  

 

Section 6: Community Development Block Grant Steering Committee  

 

A. Establishment  

 

i. There is hereby established a Community Development Block Grant Steering 

Committee who shall have oversight over all proposals and projects funded by 

Community Development Block Grant Funding.  

 

B. Membership 

 

i. The Committee shall be chaired by the Director of the Department of Community 

Development and Planning or their designee.  

 

ii. The Mayor, or their designee, shall be a member of the Committee.  

 

iii. The Mayor shall annually appoint one (1) members of the committee who shall not be 

subject to confirmation by the City Council. 

 

iv. The City Council President, or their designee, shall serve as a member of the 

Committee.  

 

v. The City Council President shall annually appoint one (1) members of the committee 

who shall not be subject to confirmation by the City Council. This appointee may be a 

member of the City Council, at the discretion of the City Council President, but 

membership of the City Council shall not be a requirement of this appointment.   

 

vi. The Mayor and City Council President shall notify the City Council, in writing, of the 

annual appointments made to the Committee.  

 

C. Technical and Staff Assistance  

 

11498



i. The Assistant Director of the Department of Community Development and Planning 

shall serve as a non-voting, ex-officio member of the Committee.  

 

ii. The Director of Community Development may assign the staff of the department to 

provide any and all necessary technical and staff assistance to the committee as 

deemed necessary.  

 

D. Meetings  

 

i. The Committee shall meet monthly. The Committee may waive this requirement upon 

written approval by both the Mayor and the City Council President. 

 

ii. The Committee shall annually submit to the Mayor and the City Council the proposed 

funding plan for funds received by the Community Development Block Grant 

Program.  

 

iii. The Committee shall also review and have oversight over all projects funded by the 

Community Development Block Grant.   

 

SECTION 2: All Sections of Chapter 7 of the Code of the City of Gardner, thereof entitled 

“Boards and Commissions” be re-numbered accordingly following the addition of the new 

Section 6.  

 

SECTION 3: This ordinance shall take effect upon passage and publication as required by law.  

   

 

 

11498



From: Elizabeth Kazinskas
To: Titi Siriphan
Cc: George Tyros
Subject: Re: Item & 2/18 Meeting Request - Economic & Community Development Standing Committee
Date: Wednesday, February 12, 2025 1:36:21 PM

Good afternoon again,

My sincerest apologies, as I omitted one request from my previous email.  I'd also like to request for
these items to be placed on the Tuesday, February 18th, full City Council meeting agenda, with
Council President Tyros' approval to do so.

Best,
Lizzy

From: Elizabeth Kazinskas <ekazinskas@gardner-ma.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, February 12, 2025 1:32 PM
To: Titi Siriphan <tsiriphan@gardner-ma.gov>
Cc: George Tyros <gtyros@gardner-ma.gov>
Subject: Item & 2/18 Meeting Request - Economic & Community Development Standing Committee

Good afternoon Madam Clerk,

I'd like to request that an item be added to the next Economic & Community Development
Committee meeting agenda for a one month update from the Director of Community Development
& Planning.

Additionally, I'd also like to request for a meeting of the Committee to be scheduled this Tuesday,
February 18th, at 5:30 PM, in the City Council Chamber.  With the Council President's approval,
please place the above requested item along with item 11498 from your previous email on the
agenda for this meeting.

Best,
Lizzy

Elizabeth Kazinskas
Councillor at Large
Gardner City Council
Economic & Community Development Committee, Chair
Appointments Committee, Member
Capital Improvement Planning Committee, Council Designee
Constituent Services & Community Outreach, Council Liaison
-----------------

11500

mailto:ekazinskas@gardner-ma.gov
mailto:tsiriphan@gardner-ma.gov
mailto:gtyros@gardner-ma.gov


(978) 337-1533
ekazinskas@gardner-ma.gov

From: Elizabeth Kazinskas
Sent: Tuesday, February 11, 2025 11:33 AM
To: Titi Siriphan <tsiriphan@gardner-ma.gov>
Cc: George Tyros <gtyros@gardner-ma.gov>
Subject: Re: New Item in folder

Thank you!

Elizabeth Kazinskas
Councillor at Large
Gardner City Council
(978) 337-1533
ekazinskas@gardner-ma.gov

From: Titi Siriphan <tsiriphan@gardner-ma.gov>
Sent: Tuesday, February 11, 2025 11:00 AM
To: Elizabeth Kazinskas <ekazinskas@gardner-ma.gov>
Cc: George Tyros <gtyros@gardner-ma.gov>
Subject: New Item in folder

Morning Councillor Kazinskas,

There is a new item in the “Assigned to Economic and Community Development” folder. I
have also attached a copy of the item.

Please let me know when you would like to schedule a meeting.

Thank you,

Ti

Titi Siriphan
City Clerk
95 Pleasant Street, Room 121
Gardner, MA 01440
Tel 978-630-4058
Fax 978-630-2589

When writing or responding, please remember that the MA Secretary of State's Office has
determined that email is a public record and therefore subject to public access under the Mass
Public Records Law. M.G.L.c.66§10.

11500

mailto:ekazinskas@gardner-ma.gov
mailto:ekazinskas@gardner-ma.gov

	01-06-2025 Regular Meeting Minutes.pdf
	There were no meeting minutes to approve.
	PETITIONS, APPLICATIONS, COMMUNICATIONS, ETC.
	There were no petitions, applications, communications, etc.




